
 KIRKLAND PARK BOARD 
Date:  March 14, 2012  
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
Place: Council Chambers, City Hall 

 
The mission of the Park Board shall be to provide policy advice and assistance 

to the Department of Parks and Community Services and City Council in order to ensure the effective provision 
of Parks and Community Services programs and facilities to the residents of the City of Kirkland. 

 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
  
2. ROLL CALL   
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 5 minutes 
 February Park Board Meeting Minutes 
 
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 5 minutes 
 
5. REVIEW OF ACTION ITEMS   

No items 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 

No items 
 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 15 minutes 

a. Correspondence 
b. Staff Reports 

-March update 
c. Committee Reports 
d. Comments from the Chair 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a.  Park Funding Exploratory Committee 20 minutes 
 Topic: Receive update on Park Funding Exploratory Committee 
 Action: Discussion only  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS  

a.  2013-2018 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Update 60 minutes 
 Topic: Receive briefing on process for updating the 2013-2018 CIP 
 Action: Identify projects to be included in CIP 
 
b.  Park Naming Request 15 minutes 
 Topic: Consider request to name Houghton Beach Park for former City 

Councilmember Doris Cooper 
 Action: Develop recommendation to City Council 

 



March 14, 2011 
Page 2 
 
10. MEETING EVALUATION 5 minutes 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT Estimated meeting completion: 9:10 p.m. 

Next meeting: April 11, 2012, 7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 



 

PARK BOARD MINUTES – February 8, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The February Park Board regular meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m. by Vice Chair 
Shawn Fenn. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
Members present: Chair Sue Keller, Vice Chair Shawn Fenn, Sue Contreras, Jennifer 
Davies, Robert Kamuda, Shelley Kloba, Ted Marx, Barbara Ramey and Adam White. 
 
Amy Johnson was excused. 
 
Staff present: Michael Cogle, Jason Filan, Mike Metteer and Jennifer Schroder. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Ms. Kloba moved to approve the January minutes as presented.  Mr. Marx seconded.  
Motion carried (9-0). 
 
4. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
No items. 
 
5. REVIEW OF ACTION ITEMS  
 
No items. 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
No items. 
 
7. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
a. Correspondence 
Ms. Schroder shared an email regarding tobacco use in parks. 
 
b. Staff Reports  
Ms. Schroder answered questions about the Kirkland Triathlon, and commented on the 
One Night Count of the Homeless, the Pearl Jam tree planting event and the effect of 
the snow storm on recreation revenue. 
 
c. Committee Reports 
Ms. Kloba reported on contacting the Moss Bay Neighborhood and signing up for the 
Pearl Jam tree planting event and commented on Jasper’s Dog Park. 
 
Ms. Davies commented on the Jasper’s Dog Park grand opening event. 
 



 

Ms. Ramey commented on the progress of the Juanita Neighborhood’s project at Edith 
Moulton Park and attendance of the Park Funding Exploratory Committee meeting. 
 
Mr. Marx reported on the Finn Hill Neighborhood Alliance and its meeting with King 
County Councilmembers, announced upcoming Audubon Society events in February and 
May and commented on the needs of Tent City. 
 
Mr. White reported on Jasper’s Dog Park. 
 
Mr. Fenn reported on the Jasper’s Dog Park grand opening event. 
 
d. Comments from the Chair 
Ms. Keller reported on the Washington Recreation and Park Association lobby day in 
Olympia which Ms. Kloba and Ms. Schroder also attended.  Ms. Kloba provided 
comments on the lobby day as well. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Park Funding Exploratory Committee 
Mr. Cogle provided an update on the Committee’s work and shared a draft project list 
which the Committee may recommend funding. 
 
The Committee will meet again on February 13th where it is anticipated a final 
Committee recommendation will be developed for submittal to the City Council at its 
March 6th Study Session. 
 
Mr. Kamuda and Ms. Ramey shared additional comments. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Batting Cages 
Ms. Schroder introduced John Rudolph, Kirkland American Little League, who submitted 
a request for batting cages at Everest Park and shared details of the proposed 
temporary structure. 
 
Mr. Rudolph answered questions from the Board and from staff. 
 
b. Business Services 
Mr. Metteer provided an update on the Business Services division’s activities and 
answered related questions. 
  
c. Update to Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan 
Mr. Cogle discussed with the Board a potential timeline for update to the City’s Parks, 
Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan. 
 
10. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
Tara Wilkins spoke in opposition to banning tobacco use in Parks. 
 
  



 

11. MEETING EVALUATION 
 
“Very informative.” 
 
The Board was informed that the City is accepting applications for vacancies on Boards 
and Commissions. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Davies moved to adjourn.  Mr. White seconded.  Motion carried (9-0). 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:39 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
  
Jennifer Schroder, Director  Sue Keller, Chair 
Parks and Community Services  Park Board 



7b 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.ci.kirkland.wa.us 

 
To: Park Board 
 
From: Jennifer Schroder, Director 
 
Date: February 3, 2012 
 
Subject: February Staff Update 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

• At the end of this report is attached a memo to City Council from the Transportation Commission regarding 
the Rail Corridor Strategic Plan. 

RECREATION DIVISION 

Recreation 
• The Spring & Summer Recreation Program Brochure is complete and will be delivered to 39,500+ homes on 

March 16th.  This brochure has 88 pages of fun!  Included are 80 new programs such as Mom & Me Ballet, 
Teen Dinner Party Cooking, Open Water Swimming skills Course, 50+ Beginner Tennis Lessons, Dog 
Training Courses, Bingo & Ice Cream and many more. 

• The Recreation Division is busy developing a new tagline and artwork to help market our programs and 
Services.  The Division’s plan is to boost marketing and to become more visible in the community by 
increasing our attendance at special events and programs around town, and also by giving a fresh new look 
and feeling to our printed marketing materials.  Our goal is to be recognized and easily identified by our 
tagline and logo.  Presently our creative ideas have been shared with a graphic designer and we hope to 
have an unveiling by summer.   

• Below is a monthly revenue comparison report of 2011 and 2012. 
  JAN FEB TOTAL 

2011 $52,919 $25,892 $78,811
2012 $46,685 $30,766 $77,451

variance ($6,233) $4,874 ($1,360) 
 
North Kirkland Community Center 
• Staff is already gearing up for summer, scheduling camp and instructor interviews.  Ordering supplies for 

programs, and developing recipes, crafts and activity ideas for camps and programs.  We are also 
scheduling guest visitors for our Jr. Camp program which will include a visit by a steel drum performer, 
Denny’s Pet World, and Kirkland Public Works and Creation Station instructor for our Goin’ Green week.  In 
addition, staff instructors will be conducting cooking demos and science and art experiments for the camp.  

• Indoor Playground continues to be a very popular program for preschoolers with an estimated weekly 
attendance of around 120 children and their parents, making for very busy mornings around the community 
center. 

• A building sign has been ordered for the North Kirkland Community Center and will be placed at the main 
entrance to help identify the building from 103rd Ave. 

• Bollywood dancing and rhythmic gymnastics to chemistry camps and expanded cooking programs. 
Youth Basketball/Aquatics 
• Pee Wee Basketball had a successful season with 70 little athletes, ages 3-5 years old, participating in the 

program. Pee Wee Basketball participants were taught the basic fundamentals of basketball such as 



March 9, 2011 
Page 2 
 

 

dribbling, passing, and teamwork through age-appropriate drills and games on Saturdays. For many 
participants, this was the first step into a team sport atmosphere.  

• Youth Basketball wrapped up a successful season of games and practices at schools in the community. This 
year, 430 youth, grades 3-6, participated in the program learning and developing basketball skills from over 
80 volunteer coaches. Coaches volunteered over 1,200 hours throughout the season making this program 
possible. 

• This season, the Steve Hale Sportsmanship Award was given to one recipient from each team.  Hale, the 
original administrator of this league, continues to impact youth today by having instilled the values of good 
sportsmanship as a fundamental element of the league. In memory of Hale, each coach presented the 
Steve Hale Sportsmanship Award to a player who best exemplified good sportsmanship, team play and a 
positive attitude throughout the season.  

• Summer is around the corner, as Aquatics planning continues. We have begun the hiring process of 70 
seasonal employees to staff Houghton and Waverly Beaches and the Peter Kirk Pool as well as instructors 
for new programs.  The pool opens June 4th with a variety of programs including Learn-to-Swim Lessons, 
Swim Team, Dive Club, Friday Family Fun Nights, Deep and Shallow Water Aerobics, and Open Swims for 
the public to enjoy. 

• Attached to the end of this report is a new Peter Kirk Pool Flyer to be distributed throughout the Northshore 
and Lake Washington School Districts. 

Sports and Fitness 
• The sports staff is currently finalizing preparations for the upcoming spring Pee Wee soccer league which is 

slated to begin April 28th.  Items at the top of the agenda include: volunteer recruitment, equipment 
ordering, staff training and marketing.  With the expansion of the program to the Kingsgate neighborhood, 
in addition to the original location in the Houghton area, we expect a slight uptick in participation this spring 
season.  We are also hiring additional part-time staff to assist with the program in addition to our adult 
sports. 

• The summer youth sport camp offerings have been finalized and we are pleased to welcome a couple of 
new partnerships that will benefit the community.  This summer we will offer our traditional sports like 
soccer, baseball, football and golf but have added lacrosse, girls softball, fencing, and skateboarding, to 
name a few.  Having a balance of traditional as well as emerging sport selections helps us to be well-
rounded in our offerings. 

• Spring softball is approaching and recruitment is in full swing.  Due to the 
downward trend in softball interest, we have changed the structure of our 
softball program to try to maximize participation.  The spring season will 
begin in early May instead of April, as done in previous years.  We have 
also structured the season to be longer in duration while decreasing the 
amount of times we offer the program overall during the year.  We have 
also added a co-ed “Chicago-style” division to league.  Chicago-style 
softball originated on the East Coast and is played with a bigger ball and 
can be played without gloves.  

• Consistency is the word that describes our adult fitness program, Move It. 
 The program has a total of 183 participants registered, the exact same 
number as the winter 2011 season.  We have four weeks left in the 
current season.  Registration for the spring season begins March 19th.   
 

Peter Kirk Community Center  
• The spring and summer brochure will be out in the middle of March and PKCC is offering several new 

daytime and evening classes including Zumba Gold, Turbokick and a variety of evening art classes. 
• The Peter Kirk Advisory Board completed its 2012 work plan. Some items included are: hosting a teen feed 

for the Kirkland Teen Union Building, organizing an Oktoberfest special event and collecting canned goods 
all year for Hopelink. 



March 9, 2011 
Page 3 
 

 

• Eastside Christian Fellowship, a local church that has been using Rose Hill Junior High for their services, will 
be renting out PKCC every Sunday for the next several months. The rental will begin the middle of April and 
go until the third week of April. 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION 

Business Services 
• Planning for Go Dog, Go! the Kirkland Canine Carnival, staff is now seeking sponsors to support the 

program as well as vendors to participate. Last year, well over 2,000 dog lovers from the Eastside and 
Seattle attended this popular event. The event will be held at Juanita Beach Park on July 28th where dogs 
and their people will enjoy a day of games, clinics, demonstrations and the Flying Disc Dog Open.   

• Requests for Proposals (RFP) for Food & Beverage Concessions in Parks was posted February 8th and will 
close on March 13th. The RFP is intended to encourage vendors to clearly show that they are qualified to 
provide food and beverage service in a consistent and revenue-positive manner for one year.  While many 
of the same vendors in parks we hosted last summer will apply, there are opportunities available within our 
established parks and within the newly acquired parks, such as 132nd Square. 

• Special Events: 
− March 17th:The Kirkland Shamrock Run.  This is and opportunity for you to show off how your green by 

participating in either the run or walk through Kirkland in celebration of St. Patrick’s Day.  The 1st Annual 
Kirkland Shamrock 5K Race & Family Fun Run will take place in downtown Kirkland with a pot of gold 
finish line awaiting at the Wilde Rover Irish Pub and Restaurant.   

Youth Services 
• Kirkland Youth Council continues to plan for the 2012 Youth Summit scheduled for March 29th at Bastyr 

University.  Some of the topic areas that will be discussed include: transition to 4-year high schools, digital 
footprints, planning for higher education, and how to get involved with Kirkland. 

• Members of the Youth Council continue to work on their next installment of We’ve Got Issues.  The focus of 
this program will be teen parties.   A subcommittee has been developing script and meeting with 
representatives from the Police Department and the City Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.   

• On February 4th members of the Youth Council held a pet food and toy drive at Denny’s Pet World in Totem 
Lake’s Upper Mall.  All items and cash collected benefited Homeward Pets. 

• Three respondents participated in February’s Teen Traffic Court and three more participated in March. 
• Youth Council members participated in a Chamber of Commerce Youth Employer Symposium on February 

14th at Kirkland City Hall. 

MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

Athletic Fields 
It’s officially time for spring sports!  
• Lee Johnson Field –Kirkland American Little League festivities will be Saturday, March 17th with an opening 

day event. Kirkland Baseball Commission will take the field at 2pm Saturday for their Jamboree, which will 
carry over to Sunday as well. The full season of games and tournaments completely begins March 20th. 
Leagues currently assigned to Lee Johnson include Lake Washington High School, Juanita High School, 
Kirkland Baseball Commission, The Merchants, Kirkland American and Kirkland National Little Leagues, and 
Puget Sound Senior Baseball Association. 

• Crestwoods – High school practices and little league practices have begun. High School games kick off the 
week of March 12th. Senior Softball will begin in late March/early April. The City’s softball program will begin 
in April as well. 

• Everest – Home to Kirkland American Little League. Practices are well underway. The regular season really 
kicks off March 17th. Games will be in full force shortly thereafter. 

• Juanita Beach – Home to Kirkland National Little League. Their schedule runs neck and neck with Kirkland 
American, so full game use of Juanita Beach will begin shortly. 



March 9, 2011 
Page 4 
 

 

• 132nd Square – It’s our first year coordinating 132nd Square and we’re enjoying the addition! Kirkland 
National is the primary historic user. They’ll be on-site five days a week. Northwest Lady Sharks and 
Woodinville Reign will be on site the other two days. Parks will also have soccer classes on Saturdays (later 
in the spring). An adult kickball league will likely also receive time. We’re having fun working this site into 
the fold! 

• District sites – Many practices and programs began March 1st. Customers of District sites are those 
previously mentioned above and Northwest Lady Sharks, Woodinville Reign, Kirkland Boys and Girls Club, 
and Kirkland Lacrosse.  

Community Gardening/Pea Patch 
• Gardening began March 1st and folks are doing great! Registration is almost complete for returning users 

(some are moving around, which has stretched moving on to the waiting list by a bit). Just over 30 people 
are on the waiting list.  

• A meeting was held February 16th for all registered users. It was a fun group! We enjoyed the meeting and 
seeing folks meet their neighbors.  

• Construction continues at Ohde Pea Patch (shown below, left) where 17 new plots are being installed and 
at Tot Lot (right), where eight new plots are being installed. The new plots are looking great! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Volunteers 
• We would like to thank one of our on-going, wonderful 

volunteers, Dave Kreul. Mr. Kreul is retired and has offered to 
help whenever and wherever he can.  Tracy Fish, Oscar 
Chavez, Collins Klemm and Evan Mowry have all been working 
with Mr. Kreul and can’t say enough about his talents. Thank 
you, Mr. Kreul!! 

• Interns from the City Church are back! 12 interns volunteered 
on March 6th at Ohde Pea Patch. They were great! 20 to 25 
interns will be back again at Ohde on March 13th. Thank you to City Church! 

Notes from the Field 
• We are starting to see signs that spring is in the air!  Bulbs are starting to pop through, some evergreen 

shrubs are starting to show, and some deciduous trees are starting to bud.  Staff will be gladly accepting 
some warmer weather. 

• The “spring ahead” time change this week triggers some of our staff’s program to “summer schedule.”  
Restrooms come out of their winterization, baseball games become part of the normal daily and evening 
schedule, grass starts to grow, and visitations to our parks start to rise with the longer, warmer days.    

• We are finally cleaned up from last month’s wind!  That little event caused staff some significant time 
getting our parks back into shape. 

• Progress is being made at Everest Park with the Kirkland American Little League batting cage.  Permits have 
been submitted and are scheduled to be available March 13th. 

 



March 9, 2011 
Page 5 
 

 

GREEN KIRKLAND PARTNERSHIP 

• The New Year is off to a flying start despite the Martin Luther King Day of Service event needing to be re-
scheduled from January 16th to January 28th because of snow.  

• Green Kirkland Stewards and ongoing administration volunteers met on January 14th to discuss goals and 
activities for 2012. 

• The February 11th Pearl Jam Planting Event at Crestwoods Park was a great success and attracted 118 
volunteers, including three Park Board members and Pearl Jam lead guitarist and band founding member 
Stone Gossard.  Video of the event is available at: 
http://kirkland.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=850 (video may be slow to load).  

• Green Kirkland Steward Karen Story and her volunteer group continue to work on Wednesday mornings at 
Cotton Hill Park. Karen and the UW Restoration Ecology Network group of students have also scheduled 
monthly events until the end of May. 

• Green Kirkland Steward Nona Ganz and her volunteer group continue to lead regular Thursday afternoon 
work parties at Juanita Bay Park. 

• The Juanita Bay Rollers (Native Plant Stewards from 2009 class) have scheduled monthly events on a 
Saturday, from January through November. 

• Eastside Preparatory School students are working regularly at Watershed Park and UW students are starting 
to become involved with monitoring research plots previously established by Eastside Prep students. 

• The following table summarizes Green Kirkland Partnership events and other activities conducted by 
volunteers in January. It includes field and administrative volunteers as well as event volunteers. 

  Volunteers 

 Date Park/Work 
Group 
Name Youth Adult Total Hours 

Dollar 
Equivalent1 

1/3 Juanita Bay Park Green Kirkland 
Steward 8 8 13 281.06 

1/5 Juanita Bay Park Green Kirkland 
Steward 7 7 12.5 270.25 

1/12 Juanita Bay Park 
Green Kirkland 
Steward 9 9 13 281.06 

1/28 Cotton Hill Park 

Green Kirkland 
Steward and UW 
REN students 28 25 53 155.5 3,361.91 

Ongoing Administration   17 17 154.04 3,330.34 

Ongoing Field Work  

Including 
43 youth from 
Eastside Prep. 43 13 56 97 2,097.14 

445.04    $9,621.76 
1 Dollar Equivalent = Hours x 21.62 

 
• Upcoming events for volunteers from the general public: 

− Saturday, March 17 at Carillon Woods, 9 am to 12 pm. Sign up online at www.earthcorps.org. Contact 
Chris LaPointe, chris@earthcorps.org 

− Saturday, March 24 at Juanita Bay Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact JBRollers@gmail.com 
− Saturday, March 31 at Cotton Hill Park, 10 am to 12 pm. Contact Karen Story Karen@tinyisland.com 
− Saturday, April 21 is Earth Day at Juanita Bay Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Sign up online at 

www.earthcorps.org. Contact Chris LaPointe, chris@earthcorps.org 
− Saturday, April 28 at Juanita Bay Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Contact JBRollers@gmail.com. 
− Saturday, April 28 at Cotton Hill Park, 10 am to 12 pm. Contact Karen Story Karen@tinyisland.com  



March 9, 2011 
Page 6 
 

 

− Saturday, May 5 at Cotton Hill Park, 10 am to 12 pm. Contact Karen Story Karen@tinyisland.com  
− Saturday, May 12 at Everest Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Sign up online at www.earthcorps.org. Contact Chris 

LaPointe, chris@earthcorps.org 
− Saturday, May 19 at Kiwanis Park, 9 am to 12 pm. Sign up online at www.earthcorps.org. Contact Chris 

LaPointe, chris@earthcorps.org 
 



 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Public Works 
123 Fifth Avenue, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3800 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Kurt Triplett, City Manager 
 
From: Transportation Commission  
 
Date: February 23, 2012 
 
Subject: Rail Corridor Strategic Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
It is recommended that the City Council reviews the Transportation Commission proposal to 
develop a scope of work and budget estimate for an Eastside Rail Corridor Strategic Plan.  
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
In 2010, Council asked the Transportation Commission to develop an Eastside Rail Corridor 
Interest Statement in preparation of the purchase of the rail corridor by King County.  It was 
anticipated that the Interest Statement could be used in a County-led regional process.  In April 
of last year, the Council approved the Commission-developed interest statement for the 
corridor.  
 
The Commission’s current work plan as approved by Council calls for the Commission to 
develop a “trail Strategic Plan”.  With the City’s acquisition of the Kirkland segment imminent, 
the Commission feels it is time to undertake work on this plan. 
 
Our current view of the strategic plan is that it will begin to address questions such as: 
 

• What are the long term and the short term visions for the corridor?  Much of this work 
may have been done in the Interest Statement. 

• Who are the stakeholders and what is their involvement at various phases?  What is the 
public process that would bring the visions to reality? 

• What is the basic development scheme?  For example, what types of transit use are 
likely and practical and when might they be active.  Should an interim trail be pursued, 
or is it likely that funding for a paved trail will be available in the near future? 

• When should a cost estimate for various development options be obtained? 
• What kind of detailed planning is necessary and when should it be done? 
• Are there certain segments of the corridor that lend themselves to development first? 
• Are some funding sources more likely than others to be secured and does this influence 

how development should occur?  

It will be important to answer these questions in the context of the Interest Statement. 
Although it is possible for the Transportation Commission to do some of the preliminary work 
for a Strategic Plan, the Commission believes that an effort of this importance and magnitude 

Council Meeting:  03/06/2012 
Agenda:  Unfinished Business 
Item #:   10. b.



 Memorandum to Kurt Triplett 
 February 23, 2012 
 Page 2 

will require the assistance of outside consulting resources.  Therefore, the Commission would 
like to develop a scope of work and budget estimate and return to Council in the late 
spring/early summer for approval.   
 
Other boards and commissions have important interests in development of a strategic plan 
particularly the Park Board, and the Transportation Commission will work with the Park Board 
and other interested stakeholders to develop the draft scope of work. 
 
 



Swim Lessons: Infant, Child, Youth & Adult  

Session 1: June 4-14 

Session 2: June 18-28 

Session 3: July 2-12 

Session 4: July 16-26 

Session 5: July 30-Aug 9 

Session 6: Aug 13-23 

The Peter Kirk Pool offers a variety of swimming lessons for all 

ages! Class sizes are small and all instructors are American Red 

Cross Water Safety Instructor Certified. Learn the important life 

safety skill of swimming! Sign up today at www.kirklandparks.net 

or call 425-587-3336 

Rent the Pool 

Call for availability, 425.587.3336 

Enjoy the summer month parties outside, reserve 

the pool for your next party! Fees are based on 

hours of use and include lifeguards, pool toys, & 

party deck space.  

 

 

 

Friday Night Fun Night 
June 8: Pools Open for Summer Pool Party @ 5:30pm 

June 15: Pool Carnival @ 5:30pm 

June 22: Schools Out for Summer! @ 5:30pm 

June 29: Family Fun 4th of July @ 5:30pm 

July 6: Pirate Pool Party@ 5:30pm 

July 13: Party with Disney @ 5:30pm 

July 20: Christmas in July Pool Party @ 5:30pm 

July 27: 50’s Sock Hop @ 5:30pm 

Aug 3: Hook Line & Seafair @ 5:30pm 

Aug 10: Fiesta at the Pool @ 5:30pm 

Aug 17: Beach Blanket Bingo Game Night @ 5:30pm 

Aug 24: Hoop It Up, Basketball Bash @ 5:30pm 

 

 

 

 

*Swim Team and Dive Club 

*Jr. Lifeguard and Swim Instructor Aid 

*Open Water Swimming and Safety Skills Course 

*Dive Club and Swim Team Prep Course’s 

*Private and Semi Private Swim Lessons 

*Diving Lessons and Stroke Lessons 

*Shallow Water Aerobics 

*Deep Water Aerobics 

*Lifeguard Training 

*Kids Triathlon Training 

Swim Lessons  
For additional Classes and registration: www.kiriklandparks.net or 425-587-3336 

Special Interest Aquatics 
 For  information and registration visit: www.kirklandwa.gov/aquatics 

 
Peter Kirk Pool 
340 Kirkland Ave 
Open June4-Sept. 3 

Peter Kirk Pool 

New for 2012! 
Stroke Lessons: Improve swimming 
skills and strokes using drills and tech-
niques from certified swimming instruc-
tors. 

Open Water Swimming and Safety 
Skills Course: Taught at Waverly 
Beach, course teaches children to be-
come safe, comfortable and confident 
in open water swimming. 

Kids Triathlon Training Course: 
Course gives each child the opportunity 
to have fun and train with other active 
kids as well as provide triathlon knowl-
edge! 

Shallow Water Aquarobics: Build 
strength, increase flexibility, and build 
core strength through water’s resistance 
and buoyancy. Instructors will motivate 
and educate you all while exercising to 
music! 

 

 

Outdoor Beach Swimming!  

Lifeguards on duty  

July 1-September 3rd 

City of Kirkland’s  

Houghton Beach 1-6pm 

Waverly Beach 2-5pm 

 

Make a splash at the City of Kirkland’s Peter Kirk Pool!!! 

 
Pool Hotline:  
425.587.3335 
Swim Lessons:  
425.587.3336 
Pool Schedule & Public 
Swim Hours:  

www.kirklandwa.gov/aquatics 

Lake Washington School District does not sponsor, 
endorse, or recommend any of the organizations, ser-
vices, or activities described in these materials. In con-
sideration for the privilege to distribute these materials, 
Lake Washington School District shall be held harmless 
from any causes of action filed in any court or adminis-
trative tribunal arising out of the distribution of these 

materials, including all costs, attorney's fees, judg-
ments, or awards. 



8a 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board 
 
From: Michael Cogle, Deputy Director 
 
Date: January 5, 2012 
 
Subject: Park Funding Exploratory Committee Update 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Park Board receive an update from staff on the Park Funding Exploratory Committee 
(PFEC). 
 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
On March 6th the PFEC report was presented to the City Council.  A copy of the complete report 
can be found on the City website: 
http://www.kirklandwa.gov/Assets/City+Council/Council+Packets/030612/3a_StudySession.pdf 
 
The City Council will discuss the PFEC recommendations in more detail on Friday, March 23rd as 
part of their annual retreat.  The retreat will be held in the Peter Kirk Room in Kirkland City Hall 
beginning at 9:00 a.m.  It is expected that the City Council will provide direction to staff and the 
Committee about next steps, including a possible random telephone survey to gauge citizen 
priorities for proposed projects and funding. 
 
 
 



9a 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
To: Park Board 
 
 
From: Michael Cogle, Deputy Director 
 
 
Date: March 9, 2012 
 
 
Subject: 2013-2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 

1. That the Park Board identify any possible new projects to be considered in the CIP. 
 

2. That the Park Board review and approve the scoring criteria for park projects eligible for 
the City’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
At the Board’s March meeting staff will provide a briefing regarding the process and timeline for 
adopting the 2013 – 2018 CIP.    
 
Timeline 
 
March Identify possible projects and adopt scoring criteria 
April Review project scoring and rankings; Develop recommended ’13 – ’18 CIP 
April CIP Recommendation presented to City Manager by Staff 
May City Council Study Session 
September City Council conducts Public Hearing on proposed CIP and Budget 
December City Council adopts CIP as part of 2013-2014 City Budget 
 
 
Funding.  The Parks CIP is anticipated to be funded over the next six-year cycle in the average 
annual amount of $750,000 from dedicated Real Estate Excise Tax (REET 1) revenue. 
 
New Projects.  With respect to possible new projects to be considered, please bring your 
ideas to the March meeting.  Keep in mind that a CIP project must cost a minimum of $50,000.  
A list of park projects provided to the Park Funding Exploratory Committee is attached for your 
review.  The current list of funded and unfunded Parks CIP projects is also attached.  As you 
will see, there are already a large number of projects waiting funding.  Given this reality, any 



Memorandum to Park Board 
2013-2018 CIP 
March 9, 2012 
Page 2 

new project ideas added for consideration should reflect a significant need or opportunity.  As 
well, we will not be proposing any capital projects which may require significant new on-going 
funding for maintenance and operations. 
 
Scoring Criteria.  The attached sheet lists the ten criteria and the scoring system that have 
been used in the past to help rank projects.  Staff recommends that the criteria and scoring 
system be adopted without change for use in evaluating possible projects for the 2013 - 2018 
CIP. 
 
Keep in mind that ranking parks CIP projects using the adopted criteria is simply one additional 
tool to use in our decision-making process, and should not by itself dictate which projects are 
included in the six-year Capital Improvement Program. 
 
For your April meeting, staff will score and rank the final list of projects for the Board’s review.   
 
PFEC Recommendation and Potential Ballot Measure.  Unfortunately the City’s decision 
process for placing a park funding measure on the November ballot does not align well with the 
City’s decision process for the CIP.  Initially, we will be developing the CIP with the assumption 
that PFEC-recommended projects will be funded from voter-approved debt.  However, if (a) the 
Council decides not to place a ballot measure before voters or (b) the ballot measure is not 
approved by voters, then it is possible that the proposed Parks CIP will need to be revised to 
incorporate a few of the projects not funded by a ballot measure.   

As a result, the Park Board and staff are being asked to develop two CIP scenarios: 
one which includes assumptions about a ballot measure being submitted to and 
approved by voters, and one which includes assumptions about a ballot measure 
NOT going forward. 
 
This is a complicating dynamic for our budget process and will require that we take a nimble 
and flexible approach to how the final Parks 2013-2018 CIP is shaped this year. 

Previous CIP Funds Repurposed for Other City Priorities.  Last year the Park Board 
recommended that the fund balance from a number of Parks CIP projects be redirected to two 
City Council priorities: (1) acquisition of the Kirkland Segment of the Eastside Rail Corridor and 
(2) developing a master plan for Totem Lake Park.  The City Council has yet to make final 
decisions on use of these funds.  Staff will consider options for reinserting some of these 
projects in to the CIP and will include as part of the staff recommendation the Board will receive 
in April. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1 – PFEC Project List 
2 – Funded 2011-2016 Parks CIP 
3 – Parks CIP Scoring Criteria 
4 – Park Board CIP Repurposing Recommendation 



PFEC Project List �
 
Category: PRESERVE – Renovating and maintaining the community’s existing park system. 

 Note: projects not listed in priority order  COSTS  
 Project Project  Capital Maintenance & Operations  

# Name Description Neighborhood Construction Acquisition One-time Ongoing Notes 
1 Waverly Beach Park 

Renovation 
Renovation may include: dock repair, 
shoreline restoration, drainage, 
irrigation, parking, playground and 
pedestrian safety 
 

Market $745,000    Funded in CIP (2012); Up to $500K of amount 
may be repurposed for Eastside Rail Corridor 
acquisition 

2 Spinney Homestead Park 
Renovation 

Renovation may include: drainage, 
irrigation, play area enhancement 
fencing, playfield 
 

Highlands $400,000   Funded in CIP (2012); Up to $350K of amount 
may be repurposed for Eastside Rail Corridor 
acquisition 

3 Terrace Park Renovation Renovation may include: drainage, 
irrigation, play area, fencing, playfield 
 

Lakeview $400,000    Funded in CIP (2014) 

4 Reservoir Park 
Renovation 

Renovation may include: drainage, 
irrigation, play area  
 

Norkirk $500,000    

5 Mark Twain Park 
Renovation 

Renovation may include: drainage, 
irrigation, play area, playfield, parking, 
fencing 
 

North Rose Hill $750,000     

6 David E. Brink Park 
Shoreline Restoration 
 

Bulkhead repair, shoreline restoration Moss Bay     

7 Everest Park Restroom 
Replacement 
 

Replace restroom/storage building in 
same location 

Everest      

8 Peter Kirk Park Restroom 
Renovation 
 

Interior renovation of restroom serving 
Lee Johnson Field and park 

Moss Bay $250,000    

9 Marsh Park Restroom 
Renovation 
 

Renovation may include new 
mechanical/ventilation systems, 
lighting, fixtures, painting, etc. 
 
 
 

Lakeview      

Page 1 of 6                                  12/6/2011 

 
 

mcogle
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



PFEC Project List �
 

 Note: projects not listed in priority order  COSTS  
 Project Project  Capital Maintenance & Operations  

# Name Description Neighborhood Construction Acquisition One-time Ongoing Notes 
10 Houghton Beach 

Restroom Renovation 
Renovation of existing building to 
include new mechanical/ventilation 
systems, lighting, fixtures, painting, etc. 
 

Lakeview      

11 Juanita Beach Park 
Bathhouse Replacement 

Replacement of existing structure to 
provide restrooms, concessions, storage 
 

South Juanita      

12 Marina Park Bulkhead 
Repair 
 

Repair of concrete bulkhead  Moss Bay      

13 Green Kirkland Forest 
Restoration Program 

Restoration of urban forested areas in 
parks per 20-year action plan 
 

Various $50,000 
annually 

   Funded in CIP (annual) 

14 Playground Replacement 
Program 

Replacement of playground equipment 
to ensure safety, accessibility, usability 
and attractiveness 
 

Various $50,000 
annually 

   Funded in CIP (annual) 

15 O.O. Denny Park 
Maintenance and 
Operations 
 

Assumption of maintenance and 
operations from Finn Hill Park District 

Finn Hill    $125,000 Preliminary M&O budget 

16 Renovation of select 
parks in newly-annexed 
neighborhoods 

Renovation of parks in newly-annexed 
neighborhoods (scope to be 
determined) 
 

Various     Parks could include 132nd Square, Kingsgate, 
Edith Moulton, Windsor Vista, and/or Juanita 
Heights 

17 Dock Renovations Repair and renovate docks at various 
parks.  Structural assessments, replace 
decking, beams, lighting, etc. 

Various $250,000    Parks include 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 6                                  12/6/2011 

 
 



PFEC Project List �
 
 

Category: ENHANCE – Redeveloping and improving the community’s existing park system. 

 Note: projects not listed in priority order  COSTS  
 Project Project  Capital Maintenance & Operations  

# Name Description Neighborhood Construction Acquisition One-time Ongoing Notes 
18 Juanita Beach Park 

Redevelopment Phase 2 
Improvements to north side of park 
selected from among parking, skate 
park,  landscaping, playfields, restroom 
 

South Juanita $561,000    Funded in CIP, intended to serve as matching 
funds for potential grants; improvements 
identified in 2005 park master plan 

19 Snyder’s Corner Park Site 
Development 

Improvements to be determined based 
on community planning process 
 

Bridle Trails $443,000   $55,400 Funded in CIP (2014) 

20 Heritage Park 
Redevelopment Phases 3 
and 4 
 

Improvements to include restroom, 
parking, street improvements, stairway 
to Lake Ave. W. 

Market $2,500,000   $50,000 Master plan completed in 2003 

21 Ohde Avenue Park 
Development 

Improvements include landscaping, pea 
patch program, play area, parking, 
irrigation, drainage, utilities 
 

Everest $250,000   $7,000  

22 McAuliffe Park 
Development 

Improvements include renovation of 
structures for 
meeting/rental/concession space, 
parking, traffic/pedestrian circulation, 
landscaping, irrigation, site utilities 
 

South Juanita $7,000,000   $100,000 Master plan completed in 2005 

23 Peter Kirk Park Lee 
Johnson Field Synthetic 
Turf and Lighting 
 

Installation of synthetic turf and 
improved field lighting for year-round 
multi-purpose sports activities 

Moss Bay $1,500,000     

24 Lake Avenue West Park 
Site Development 

Shoreline restoration, landscaping, 
installation of  benches, viewing 
features 
 

Market $100,000   $5,000  

25 Kiwanis Park 
Development 

Shoreline restoration, trails, interpretive 
features, parking, landscaping, 
irrigation 

Market $1,100,000    Master plan required 

Page 3 of 6                                  12/6/2011 

 
 



PFEC Project List �
 

 Note: projects not listed in priority order  COSTS  
 Project Project  Capital Maintenance & Operations  

# Name Description Neighborhood Construction Acquisition One-time Ongoing Notes 
26 Yarrow Bay Wetlands 

Development 
Shoreline restoration, trails and 
boardwalks, interpretive features, 
parking 
 

Lakeview $1,600,000    Master plan required 

27 Heronfield Wetlands 
Development 

Wetland restoration, trails and 
boardwalks, interpretive features, 
parking 
 

South Juanita $1,600,000    Master plan required 

28 Watershed Park 
Development 

Parking, trails, interpretive features, 
landscaping, forest restoration 
 

Central 
Houghton 

$1,100,000    Master plan required 

29 Forbes Lake Park 
Development 

New trails/boardwalks, interpretive 
features, wetland restoration, parking 
 

North Rose Hill $1,800,000   $25,000 Funded in CIP ($950,000) for 1st phase (2012); 
Up to $200K of amount funded may be 
repurposed for Eastside Rail Corridor acquisition 
 

30 Redevelopment of select 
parks in newly-annexed 
neighborhoods 

Redevelopment of parks in newly-
annexed neighborhoods (scope to be 
determined) 
 

Various     Parks could include 132nd Square, Kingsgate, 
Edith Moulton, Windsor Vista, and/or Juanita 
Heights 

         
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 6                                  12/6/2011 

 
 



PFEC Project List �
 
 

Category: EXPAND – Meeting Level of Service commitments and pursuing important new opportunities 

 Note: projects not listed in priority order  COSTS  
 Project Project  Capital Maintenance & Operations  

# Name Description Neighborhood Construction Acquisition One-time Ongoing Notes 
31 Indoor multi-purpose 

community recreation 
center 

Development of new multi-purpose 
recreation facility to include aquatics, 
gymnasium, fitness, classroom and 
meeting space 
 

Unknown $42,000,000    Does not include land acquisition; net ongoing 
M&O costs to be determined based on facility 
operational model and revenue projections 

32 Eastside Rail Corridor 
(Cross Kirkland Trail) 

Acquisition and development of a 
portion of corridor for pedestrian/bikes 
 

Various $420,000 - 
$20,000,000 

$5,000,000   Includes segment between S. Kirkland 
Park/Ride and Totem Lake; Construction ranges 
from gravel trail to paved trail with transit way 

33 Kirkland Cannery Building Acquisition, preservation, and re-use of 
historic structure 

Norkirk $2,400,000 $750,000   Construction costs from 2006 study; acquisition 
cost estimated from KC Assessor appraisal 
 

34 Totem Lake Park 
Development 

Improvements to include 
trail/boardwalk, interpretive features, 
wetland restoration, flood control, 
habitat enhancements, parking 
 

Totem Lake     Master plan process in 2012 proposed by Park 
Board 

35 New Neighborhood Park: 
North Juanita (east of 
Juanita High School) 
 

Acquisition and development of land for 
neighborhood park to meet ¼-mile LOS 

North Juanita $500,000 $2,000,000  $50,000 Costs are estimated; no properties identified 

36 New Neighborhood Park: 
North Juanita (north of 
Juanita Beach) 
 

Acquisition and development of land for 
neighborhood park to meet ¼-mile LOS 

North Juanita $500,000 $2,000,000  $50,000 Costs are estimated; no properties identified 

37 New Neighborhood Park: 
Totem Lake 
neighborhood 
 

Acquisition and development of land for 
neighborhood park to meet ¼-mile LOS 

Totem Lake $500,000 $2,000,000  $50,000 Costs are estimated; no properties identified 

38 New Neighborhood Park: 
North Rose Hill (north 
part of neighborhood) 
 

Acquisition and development of land for 
neighborhood park to meet ¼-mile LOS 

North Rose Hill $500,000 $2,000,000  $50,000 Costs are estimated; no properties identified 

Page 5 of 6                                  12/6/2011 

 
 



PFEC Project List �
 

Page 6 of 6                                  12/6/2011 

 
 

 Note: projects not listed in priority order  COSTS  
 Project Project  Capital Maintenance & Operations  

# Name Description Neighborhood Construction Acquisition One-time Ongoing Notes 
39 New Neighborhood Park: 

Market Neighborhood 
(north part of 
neighborhood) 
 

Acquisition and development of land for 
neighborhood park to meet ¼-mile LOS 

Market $500,000 $2,000,000  $50,000 Costs are estimated; no properties identified 

40 New Neighborhood 
Parks: 
Newly-annexed 
neighborhoods 
 

Acquisition and development of land for 
neighborhood parks to meet ¼-mile 
LOS in newly-annexed neighborhoods 

Various      

41 McAuliffe Park Expansion Acquisition of land to support parking 
and provide residential buffer from 
active uses 
 

South Juanita      

42 Waterfront park land 
acquisition 

Acquisition of waterfront on Lake 
Washington as opportunities arise  
 

Various      

43 Bell Elementary School 
Playfield Improvements 

Renovation and/or expansion of school 
playfields to improve safety and 
performance 
 

South Juanita $200,000   $50,000  

44 ICS School Playfield 
Improvements 

Renovation and/or expansion of school 
playfields to improve safety and 
performance 
 

Central 
Houghton 

$300,000   $50,000  

45 Dog Off-Leash Areas Development of new areas for dog off-
leash activity 
 

Various      

         
 

 

 

 



City of Kirkland

 
PARK PROJECTS 

Funded Projects:

Funding Source
Project Prior 2011-2016 Current External
Number Project Title Year(s) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total Revenue Reserve Debt Source

PK 0049 Open Space and Pk Land Acq Grant Match Program 100,000 100,000 100,000
PK 0066* Park Play Area Enhancements 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 250,000 250,000
PK 0087* Waverly Beach Park Renovation 75,000 508,000 162,000 670,000 670,000
PK 0113* Spinney Homestead Park Renovation 62,000 338,000 400,000 400,000
PK 0115* Terrace Park Renovation 62,000 338,000 400,000 400,000
PK 0119* Juanita Beach Park Development 2,700,000 18,000 1,043,000 1,061,000 561,000 500,000
PK 0121 Green Kirkland Forest Restoration Program 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 300,000 300,000
PK 0124* Snyder's Corner Park Site Development 75,000 13,000 355,000 443,000 443,000
PK 0131 Park and Open Space Acquisition Program 1,071,000 118,000 118,000 118,000 118,000 472,000 472,000
PK 0132 General Park Renovation Program 669,000 696,000 1,365,000 1,365,000

Total Funded Park Projects 3,846,000 888,000 811,000 1,336,000 861,000 769,000 796,000 5,461,000 4,389,000 100,000 0 972,000

Unfunded Projects: Prior Year(s) Funding (Budget to Actuals):

Project Project
Number Project Title Number Budget Actual Balance

PK 0078 600" A.G. Bell Elementary Playfields Improvements 200,000 PK 0087* Waverly Beach Park Renovation 75,000 0 75,000
PK 0078 800" International Comm. School Playfield Improvements 300,000 PK 0119* Juanita Beach Park Development 2,700,000 754,137 1,945,863
PK 0086 Totem Lake Neighborhood Park Acquisition & Development 2,500,000 PK 0131 Park and Open Space Acquisition Program 1,071,000 508,607 562,393
PK 0095 100 Heritage Park Development - Phase III & IV 2,500,000 Total Prior Year(s) Funding (Budget to Actuals): 3,846,000 1,262,744 2,583,256
PK 0096 Ohde Avenue Park Development 250,000
PK 0097 Reservoir Park Renovation 500,000
PK 0099 N. Juanita (East) Neighborhood Park Acquisition/Development 2,500,000
PK 0100 N. Juanita (West) Neighborhood Park Acquisition/Development 2,500,000
PK 0101 N. Rose Hill Neighborhood Park Acquisition/Development (North) 2,500,000
PK 0102 N. Rose Hill Neighborhood Park Acquisition/Development (Central) 2,500,000
PK 0103 Market Neighborhood Park Acquisition/Development 3,500,000
PK 0108 McAuliffe Park Development 7,000,000
PK 0114 Mark Twain Park Renovation 750,000
PK 0116 Lee Johnson Field Artificial Turf Installation 1,500,000
PK 0117 Lake Avenue West Street End Park Enhancement 100,000
PK 0122 100 Community Recreation Facility Construction 42,000,000
PK 0125*" Dock Renovations 250,000
PK 0126 Watershed Park Master Planning & Park Development 1,100,000
PK 0127 Kiwanis Park Master Planning & Park Development 1,100,000
PK 0128 Yarrow Bay Wetlands Master Planning & Park Development 1,600,000
PK 0129 Heronfield Wetlands Master Planning & Development 1,600,000

Total Unfunded Park Projects 76,750,000

Notes
* = Modification in timing and/or cost (see Project Modification Schedule for greater detail)
+ = Moved from unfunded status to funded status
" = Moved from funded status to unfunded status
Shaded year(s) = Previous timing
Bold italics = New projects

Project TitleTotal

Revised Preliminary 2011-2016 Capital Improvement Program

Attachment
 2
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

CRITERIA FOR RANKING PARKS CIP PROJECTS 
 
 Criteria None 

0 Points 

Low 

1 Point 

Moderate 

2 Points 

High 

3 Points 

1 Responds to an Urgent 

Need or Opportunity, 

Conforms to Legal, 

Contractual or 

Government Mandate 

• No need or urgency • Suspected need with 

no substantiation 

• Suspected need 

based upon visual 

inspection, public 

comment 

• Suspected threat of 

development 

• Report or other 

documentation has 

been prepared 

• Confirmed threat of 

development 

• Fills important gap in 

park system 

• Significant public 

comment: survey, 

petition, public 

hearing 

• Legal, contractual, 

gov’t mandate 

2 Health and Safety Issues • No known issues • Suspected health or 

safety issue with no 

substantiation 

• Suspected need 

based upon visual 

inspection, or public 

comment 

• visible deterioration 

• Documented evidence 

of unsanitary 

condition, health and 

safety code violations, 

injury 

3 Fiscal Values • Leveraging of funds 

through partnerships, 

grants, bonds or 

volunteers is unlikely 

• Leveraging of funds 

somewhat likely 

through partnerships, 

grants, bonds and 

volunteers 

• Leveraging of at least 

1/2 project funding 

available from other 

sources; 

• Leveraging of more 

than 50 percent of 

project costs from 

other sources 

4 Conforms to PROS Plan or 

Other Adopted Plan 

• Not in any plan 

document 

• N/A • Identified in 

Comprehensive or 

Functional plan 

• Helps meet level of 

service objectives 

5 Feasibility, including Public 

Support and Project 

Readiness 

• Project simply an idea 

• No public input 

• No other supporting 

information 

• Some public 

involvement such as 

letters, workshops 

• Professional report 

• Schematic or 

conceptual level 

approval 

• Property identified 

• High public support 

• Completed appraisal 

• Construction 

documents complete 

• Option or right of first 

refusal, willing seller 

6 Implications of Deferring 

Project 

• No impact 

• No imminent threat of 

development; 

• Temporary repair 

measures available 

without significant 

liability or added 

future cost 

• Indications of possible 

development 

• Program quality 

limited or reduced 

• Evidence of possible 

structural failure 

• Confirmed private 

development sale 

possible 

• Program participation 

limited or reduced 

• Imminent possible 

structural failure, 

facility closure, or 

other similar factor 

• Program cancellation 

• Unable to meet level 

of service 

• Imminent sale for 

private development 

7 Benefits to Other New 

Capital Projects or an 

existing Park/ 

Facility/Service, or Service 

Delivery 

• No association with or 

impacts to other 

projects 

• Minimal benefit to 

existing or other 

projects 

• Moderate benefit such 

as relieving overuse 

at another facility 

• Corrects minor 

problem at adjacent 

facility 

• Significant benefit 

such as providing 

added capacity to a 

facility 

• Corrects major 

problem at adjoining 

facility 

8 Number of City Residents 

Served 

• No residents served • Only one 

neighborhood served 

• More than one City 

neighborhood served 

• Project will serve a 

City-wide population 

9 Maintenance and 

Operations Impact 

• Requires substantial 

new    M & O, no 

current budgetary 

commitment  

• Resources/capacity 

available without 

additional budget 

commitment 

• Requires new 

resources which are 

available or likely 

available in budget 

• Has minimal or no 

impact on existing M 

& O resources 

• Resources already 

allocated or planned 

for project in budget 

• M & O requirements 

absorbed with existing 

resources 

• Substantial reduction 

in M & O. 

10 Geographic Distribution • Duplicates service, 

significant number of 

resources available in 

area, level of service 

overlap 

• Adequate number of 

Parks are nearby, 

minimal level of 

service overlap 

• Parks nearby, no level 

of service overlap, 

and gaps in service 

identified 

• Underserved area.  

No facilities within 

service area. 

 
 



ATTACHMENT 4 
 

ACQUISITION OF EASTSIDE RAIL CORRIDOR 

PARK BOARD RECOMMENDATION 

Given the high priority the City has placed on acquiring the Eastside Rail Corridor, and given the timing considerations, 
the Park Board has recommended that approximately $1.54 million of certain existing Parks CIP funds be made available 
and repurposed as necessary to assist with acquisition of this important and unique community asset.  This 
recommendation was approved by the Board in March of 2011.   

 
PROJECT 

TOTAL 
AVAILABLE

REMAIN WITH 
PROJECT 

REPURPOSE FOR 
RAIL CORRIDOR

Forbes Lake Park Development              $800,000               $600,000   $200,000 

South Juanita Park Site Development               $212,349   $0   $212,349 

Skate Park               $200,000   $0     $200,000 

Waverly Beach Park Renovation               $745,000               $240,000    $505,000 

Spinney Homestead Park Renovation                $400,000                  $50,000    $350,000 

Community Rec.  Center Facility  Planning  $  71,980 $0    $  71,980 
     Total:  $1,539,329 

Note: Funding for Parks capital projects averages $731,000 per year (Current Revenue) in the 2011-2016 CIP 

Background: 

The Forbes Lake Park Development project is proceeding.  The Parks and Community Services Department is in the 
final stages of seeking permits and soon will be preparing to seek construction bids with an eye towards 2012 
spring/summer construction of a trail from 124th Avenue NE to the lake’s shoreline.  We were not successful in seeking a 
State grant to augment the project budget in order to complete a larger lake trail system at this time; as a result, only a 
portion of the project can be completed and the selected portion can be completed within the existing CIP budget.  The 
reduced approach to the project will likely result in some project savings which we are recommending for repurposing. 

The South Juanita Park Site Development project is a long-standing project which originally was intended to support 
improvements to neighborhood park property on NE 116th which has since been incorporated into McAuliffe Park.  This 
project is now seen as being a lower priority for use of City resources given that a playground and other related 
improvements were previously completed at the site. 

The Skate Park project has been in the Parks CIP for a number of years, and pre-dates completion of the Juanita Beach 
Park Master Plan in 2006.  The park master plan envisions a community skate park constructed in what is now the gravel 
parking lot adjacent to Juanita Drive.  However, development of the skate park cannot be completed independent of 
other scheduled park improvements (new replacement parking, Little League field improvements, etc.).  It is appropriate 
at this time that the project funding should be re-directed to more immediate priorities. 

The Waverly Beach Park and Spinney Homestead Park renovation projects, while important, do not have the same 
sense of urgency compared to acquisition of the Corridor.  We are recommending however that a portion of each of the 
project budgets be retained for planning purposes to complete engineering reports, work with the community to create 
renovation plans, and obtain updated project cost estimates for each park.  For Waverly Beach, a portion of the budget 
would also be retained for refurbishing the dock which has been identified by staff as the most vital need at this time. 

The Community Recreation Facility Planning funds were intended to be used to analyze an identified potential site 
for a new facility.  Such a site has yet to be found, and again, it is appropriate at this time that the project funding should 
be re-purposed for a higher priority. Funding for site analysis can be reconsidered once a potential site is actually 
identified. 



9b 

 

CITY OF KIRKLAND 
Department of Parks & Community Services 
505 Market Street, Suite A, Kirkland, WA  98033  425.587.3300 
www.kirklandwa.gov 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Park Board 
 
From: Jennifer Schroder, Director 
 
Date: March 8, 2012 
 
Subject: Request to rename Houghton Beach Park 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
For the Park Board to consider naming Houghton Beach Park after former City Councilmember 
and community activist Doris Cooper. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DISCUSSION:   
 
At the March 6th City Council Meeting, Kirkland resident Lynn Stokesbary submitted a written 
request to name Houghton Beach Park after former Councilmember Doris Cooper.  Ms. Cooper 
served on the City Council from 1973-1993, and passed away April 29, 2011.  Mr. Stokesbary 
provided an overview of her support for parks during her 20 years of service as a council 
member. 
 
Per the Naming of Public Parks and Facilities policy (Resolution R-4799), the City Council asked 
that the Park Board review the request and forward a recommendation to the City Council.     
 
 
 
Attachments:   

1. Park Naming Resolution R-4799 
2. March 6, letter from Nona Ganz, Robert Pantley and Lynn Stokesbary 
3. Doris Cooper retirement announcement 







To:    Kirkland City Council 
From:  Nona Ganz, Robert Pantley, Lynn Stokesbary 
Date:  March 6, 2012 
Subject:  Park Naming In Honor of Doris Cooper  

 
Recommendation 
 
To add the name of Doris Cooper to Houghton Beach Park in honor of her sustained 
and outstanding civic service to the Kirkland park system. Our recommendation is to 
retain the original name of Houghton Beach Park and add Doris Cooper’s name to the 
sign.  A previous example of this was done several years ago when the late Phyllis 
Needy’s name was added to the Houghton Neighborhood Park sign.    
 
In 1985, the Kirkland City Council adopted Resolution R-3215, and later amended in 
January 2010, establishing policies and procedures for the naming of parks and 
facilities.  In this Resolution the City Council created policy to choose a name for a 
public park or facility to one of several criteria.  One specific criteria that stands out as 
the basis for honoring Doris Copper is written as follows: 
 
“An individual (living or deceased) who has given outstanding civic service to the 
Kirkland Park system, or has donated substantial funds or land to the Kirkland park 
system, or has been otherwise instrumental in the acquisition or development of critical 
park acreage (e.g., Marsh Park).  Parks or facilities shall not ordinarily be named for a 
living person, unless that person has made a significant and outstanding contribution of 
land, money, or civic service.  A waiting period of at least one year should expire before 
naming a park or facility under the policy of this subparagraph;”  
 
The timing for naming a park after Doris Cooper is appropriate as we are approaching 
the first year of her passing, April 29, 2011.   
 
Background 
 
Before Doris Cooper began her 20 year service on the City Council in 1973 she was an 
active member of the community. Her activities included: 
 

• One of the organizers of the telegram campaign to acquire Houghton Beach 
Park. 

• Committee member to acquire the Yarrow Bay wetlands 
• Coordinator of the Moss Bay Celebration 
• Houghton Community Council member 
• Former Chair and member of the Board of Adjustment 
• Active in Lakeview Elementary, Kirkland Junior High, and Lake Washington High 

School PTA Boards. 
  



In 1973 Doris Cooper was elected to the Kirkland City Council and successfully elected 
to 5 terms on the Council before retiring at the end of her term in 1993. She was the 
city’s first woman mayor in 1984, a position she held for three consecutive two-year 
terms.  During her time on the Council Doris Cooper was also named the Seattle-King 
County Municipal League’s Outstanding Public Official in1987 (the Oscars of local 
government service) and was President of the Suburban Cities Association. 
 
Doris’ support of parks planning, acquisition, development, and renovation was 
unequivocal. Throughout her public service parks were her passion and are what 
inspired Doris Cooper to run for the Kirkland City Council in 1973.  It all began with 
Doris and her two friends, Judy Frolich, and Delores Teutsch who organized a telegram 
campaign to acquire funding for acquisition of Houghton Beach Park.  In the years that 
followed Doris played key roles as a coordinator, mastermind, and publicity chairs for 
the 1976, 1984, 1989, and 1992 Park Bond Measures.   
 
Each of these bond measures resulted in acquiring and/or developing properties critical 
to the Kirkland parks system and for the quality of life and enjoyment of residents.   
Often the centerpieces of these bond measures included threatened properties that 
would otherwise be sold for development or other uses if they were not acquired by the 
City. 
 
The following summarizes the legacy of park acquisition and development resulting 
from these 4 Bond Measures for which Doris was so inextricably linked: 
 

1976 
“Bond Kirkland Together” 

 
• Waterfront Acquisition 
• Development of the Senior Center 
• Acquisition of 29 acre former Juanita Golf Course 

 
1984 

“A Good Buy or Goodbye!” 
 

• Acquisition of the 9.2 acre Waverly Site from the Lake Washington School 
District (now Heritage Park and home to Heritage Hall) 

• Acquisition of 17 acres from former Juanita Golf Course 
 

1989 
“Bond Kirkland Together” 

 
• Acquisition of property for City’s first Community Center in addition to 

development of South Juanita Neighborhood Park  
• Development of Everest Community Park 
• Development of Crestwoods Community Park 
• Development of Juanita Bay Park 



• Acquisition and development of Houghton Neighborhood Park 
• Acquisition and development of North Rose Hill Neighborhood Park 
• Acquisition of South Rose Hill Neighborhood Park 
• Open space acquisitions on Forbes Lake 

 
In 1989 King County voters also approved the King County Open Space and 
Trails Bond Measure which included $1.7 million for Kirkland to renovate Marina 
and Houghton Beach Parks, acquisition of additional park land in Juanita Bay 
Park, and provide trails and wetland viewing boardwalks at Totem Lake. 
 

1992 
“Kirkland’s Pride In Its Parks!” 

 
• Acquisition of Dr. Burhen property to David E. Brink Park 

 
This $1.5 measure twice failed at the ballot just shy of the 60% “yes” vote.  
Despite these setbacks, Doris Cooper,  Councilmembers, City staff, and citizens 
in the community worked hard and successfully to obtain grant and secure other 
outside funding to purchase the property. The City ended up only paying 
$145,000 for the property, a real bargain for 175 feet of prime waterfront property 
near downtown Kirkland. 
 
Doris Cooper’s dedication to parks was not limited to Bond measures.  She was a 
champion of many other important park acquisition and development projects that were 
funded through the City’s Capital Improvement Program, State granting agencies, and 
King County conservation funding programs.  If asked, you could always count on Doris 
to accompany staff in making grant request presentations to outside agencies.  She had 
great instincts and when called upon she always had the right thing to say and it was 
usually punctuated with a great sense of humor.  
 
Some notable examples of other park related projects include: 
 

• Acquisition of the 36.5 acre Forbes Valley from the McCrory family, 
representing the largest single purchase of park property in the City’s 
history.  This was a very significant addition to Juanita Bay Park creating a 
103.5 acre nature preserve supporting an important plant and wildlife 
habitat corridor. 

 
• Acquired the 1.5 acre First Summit waterfront property providing the 

anchor to the north end of Juanita Bay Park.   
 

•  Approval of the City Cemetery Master Plan resulting in significant 
improvements and historic renovations to the cemetery first envisioned by 
Peter Kirk. 
 



• Effectively working with King County to build new little league fields at Finn 
Hill Park for Kirkland National Little League who for years shared fields 
with Kirkland American Little League at Everest Park. This allowed Kirkland 
American Little League to grow it’s girls program at Everest Park which 
now proudly hosts the Girl’s Junior Softball World Series every year in 
August. 
 

• Many capital improvements to children’s playgrounds, trails, docks and 
shorelines, ballfields, basketball and tennis courts, and indoor facilities 
such as the Senior Center (now Peter Kirk Community Center) and North 
Kirkland Community Center.    

 
 

 
In doing our research on Doris Cooper we discovered additional notable 
accomplishments and recognition for her work in public service.  We believe they are 
significant and important to include in our report: 
 

• Executive Board, Puget Sound Council of Governments 
• Chair, King County Solid Waste Management Board 
• State Coordinator, Women in Municipal Government 
• Campaign Manager, Evergreen Hospital Bond Issue 1978 
• Executive Board, Washington Press Association 
• Human Services Roundtable 
• Woman of Achievement, 1978, Kirkland Business and Professional Women 
• Member of Local and Regional Shorelines Committee which established 

guidelines for adoption by Washington State Department of Ecology 
 
Next Steps 
 
Based on the direction of the City Council we envision the Council referring this park 
naming request to the Park Board for their review and recommendation perhaps as 
early as their March or April meetings.  Many people that we have talked to would like to 
see a dedication at Houghton Beach Park this July that not only adds Doris Cooper’s 
name to the park but also celebrates the many others who helped acquire Houghton 
Beach and turned it into the waterfront gem it is today.   
 
We have also attached a list of local residents, past and present, who support the 
recommendation of adding Doris Cooper’s name to Houghton Beach Park.   
 
Please accept out thanks for considering our recommendation along with others who 
want to honor a legacy of exceptional public service. 
 
 
 
 



 
Supporters of Park Naming In Honor of Doris Cooper 
 
Dave and Hazel Russell 
Bob Neir 
Al Locke 
Sants and Sue Contreras 
Michaele Muse 
Mary-Alyce Burleigh 
Paul Hoerlein 
Bob Kamuda 
Barbara Loomis 
Bob Burke 
Loita Hawkinson 
Sue Keller 
Deb Eddy 
Larry Springer 
Norm Storm 
Dolly Turner 
Sherry Grindeland 
Matt Gregory 
Andy Held 
Rick Whitney 
Betsy Pringle 
Rebecca Hirt 
Jill Keeney 
Carolyn Hyak 
Robert Pantley 
Nona Ganz 
Lynn Stokesbary 
Dave Ramsay 
Cindy Zech 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      




	1 KIRKLAND PARK BOARD Agenda Mar 14 12.pdf
	3_ParkBoard_Minutes_Feb 8 2012 draft
	7b1_Park Board Update March 2012
	7b2_ERC Strategic Plan Council Memo March 2012
	7b3_aquatics flyer for schools and public
	8a1_Park Board Memo_Park Funding Exploratory Committee Update March 2012
	9a1_2013-2018 CIP Update Memo to Board
	9a2_PFEC Project List For Parks CIP Attachment 1
	9a3_2011 - 2016 CIP Parks Attachment 2
	9a4_CIP scoring criteria Attachment 3
	9a5_Rail Corridor_Park Board Recommendation_Talking Points Attachment 4
	9b1_Park Name_Doris Cooper
	9b2_park naming resolution R-4799Ex
	9b3_Doris  Cooper Park Naming Request



